

Collection Request (ICR) has been forwarded to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for review and approval: The Landfill Methane Outreach Program, ICR Number 1849.01. The ICR describes the nature of the information collection and its expected burden and cost; where appropriate, it includes the actual data collection instrument.

**DATES:** Comments must be submitted on or before November 27, 2000.

**ADDRESSES:** Send comments, referencing EPA ICR No. 1849.01 to the following addresses: Sandy Farmer, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Collection Strategies Division (Mail Code 2822), 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20460; and to, Office of Information and Regulatory Affairs, Office of Management and Budget (OMB), Attention: Desk Officer for EPA, 725 17th Street, NW, Washington, DC 20503.

**FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:** For a copy of the ICR contact Sandy Farmer at EPA by phone at (202) 260-2740, by email at [farmer.sandy@epamail.epa.gov](mailto:farmer.sandy@epamail.epa.gov), or download off the Internet at <http://www.epa.gov/icr> and refer to EPA ICR No. 1849.01. For technical questions about the ICR contact Cindy Jacobs at (202) 564-1129.

**SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:** *Title:* EPA Landfill Methane Outreach Program (EPA ICR No. 1849.01). This is a new collection.

*Abstract:* The Landfill Methane Outreach Program (LMOP) is an EPA-sponsored voluntary program that encourages landfill owners, communities, and project developers to implement methane recovery technologies to utilize the methane as a source of fuel and to reduce emissions of methane, a potent greenhouse gas. The Landfill Methane Outreach Program further encourages utilities and other energy customers to support and promote the use of landfill methane at their facilities. The Landfill Methane Outreach Program signs voluntary Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) with these organizations to enlist their support in promoting cost-effective landfill gas utilization. The information collection includes one-time completion and submission of the MOU, and one-time and periodic completion and submission of information forms that include basic information on the organizations that sign the MOU and landfill methane projects in which they are involved. The primary purpose of the information collection is to evaluate the success of the LMOP in reducing methane emissions from landfills. Responses to the information collection

are voluntary. An agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number. The OMB control numbers for EPA's regulations are listed in 40 CFR part 9 and 48 CFR Chapter 15. The **Federal Register** document required under 5 CFR 1320.8(d), soliciting comments on this collection of information was published on 2/14/2000 (65 FR 7390); no comments were received.

*Burden Statement:* The annual public reporting and recordkeeping burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 4.8 hours per year per respondent. Burden means the total time, effort, or financial resources expended by persons to generate, maintain, retain, or disclose or provide information to or for a Federal agency. This includes the time needed to review instructions; develop, acquire, install, and utilize technology and systems for the purposes of collecting, validating, and verifying information, processing and maintaining information, and disclosing and providing information; adjust the existing ways to comply with any previously applicable instructions and requirements; train personnel to be able to respond to a collection of information; search data sources; complete and review the collection of information; and transmit or otherwise disclose the information.

*Respondents/Affected Entities:* Local agencies and municipalities that own landfills, State agencies, Manufacturers and suppliers of equipment/knowledge to capture and utilize landfill gas, utility companies, End users of energy from the landfill.

*Estimated Number of Respondents:* 310 (average over 3 years).

*Frequency of Response:* Annually and on occasion.

*Estimated Total Annual Hour Burden:* 1,484 hours.

*Estimated Total Annualized Capital and Operating & Maintenance Cost Burden:* \$670.

Send comments on the Agency's need for this information, the accuracy of the provided burden estimates, and any suggested methods for minimizing respondent burden, including through the use of automated collection techniques to the addresses listed above. Please refer to EPA ICR No. 1849.01 in any correspondence.

Dated: October 15, 2000.

**Oscar Morales,**

*Director, Collection Strategies Division.*

[FR Doc. 00-27579 Filed 10-25-00; 8:45 am]

**BILLING CODE 6560-50-P**

## ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

[FRL-6890-9; MM-HQ-2001-0004]

### Clean Water Act Class II: Proposed Administrative Settlement, Penalty Assessment and Opportunity to Comment Regarding AT&T Corp.

**AGENCY:** Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

**ACTION:** Notice.

**SUMMARY:** EPA has entered into a consent agreement with AT&T Corp. to resolve violations of the Clean Water Act ("CWA"), and its implementing regulations. AT&T Corp. failed to prepare Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasure ("SPCC") plans for twenty-four facilities where they stored diesel oil in above ground tanks. EPA, as authorized by CWA section 311(b)(6), 33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6), has assessed a civil penalty for these violations. The Administrator, as required by CWA section 311(b)(6)(C), 33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6)(C), is hereby providing public notice of, and an opportunity for interested persons to comment on, this consent agreement and proposed final order.

**DATES:** Comments are due on or before November 27, 2000.

**ADDRESSES:** Mail written comments to the Enforcement & Compliance Docket and Information Center (2201A), Docket Number EC-2000-011, Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., Mail Code 2201A, Washington, DC 20460. (Comments may be submitted on disk in WordPerfect 8.0 or earlier versions.) Written comments may be delivered in person to: Enforcement and Compliance Docket Information Center, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Rm. 4033, Ariel Rios Bldg., 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., Washington, DC. Submit comments electronically to [doCKET.oeca@epa.gov](mailto:doCKET.oeca@epa.gov). Electronic comments may be filed online at many Federal Depository Libraries.

The consent agreement, the proposed final order, and public comments, if any, may be reviewed at the Enforcement and Compliance Docket Information Center, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Rm. 4033, Ariel Rios Bldg., 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., Washington, DC. Persons interested in reviewing these materials must make arrangements in advance by calling the docket clerk at 202-564-2614. A reasonable fee may be charged by EPA for copying docket materials.

**FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:**

Philip Milton, Multimedia Enforcement Division (2248-A), U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., Washington, DC 20460; telephone (202) 564-5029; fax: (202) 564-0010; e-mail: [milton.philip@epa.gov](mailto:milton.philip@epa.gov).

**SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:** Electronic Copies: Electronic copies of this document are available from the EPA Home Page under the link "Laws and Regulations" at the **Federal Register—Environmental Documents** entry (<http://www.epa.gov/fedrgstr>).

**I. Background**

AT&T Corp., a telecommunications company incorporated in the State of New York and located at 32 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10013-2412 failed to prepare SPCC plans for twenty-four facilities. AT&T Corp. disclosed, pursuant to the EPA "Incentives for Self-Policing: Discovery, Disclosures, Correction and Prevention of Violations" ("Audit Policy"), 60 FR 66,706 (December 22, 1995), that they failed to prepare SPCC plans for twenty-four facilities where they stored diesel oil in above ground storage tanks, in violation of the CWA section 311(b)(3) and 40 CFR part 112. EPA determined that AT&T Corp. met the criteria set out in the Audit Policy for a 100% waiver of the gravity component of the penalty. As a result, EPA waived the gravity based penalty (\$137,500.00) and proposed a settlement penalty amount of (\$24,078.00). This is the amount of the economic benefit gained by AT&T Corp., attributable to their delayed compliance with the SPCC regulations. AT&T Corp. has agreed to pay this amount in civil penalties. EPA and AT&T Corp. negotiated and signed an administrative consent agreement, following the Consolidated Rules of Procedure, 40 CFR section 22.13, on October 19, 2000 (*In Re: AT&T Corp.*, Docket No. MM-HQ-2001-0004). This consent agreement is subject to public notice and comment under CWA section 311(b)(6), 33 U.S.C. section 1321(b)(6).

Under CWA section 311(b)(6)(A), 33 U.S.C. 1321 (b)(6)(A), any owner, operator, or person in charge of a vessel, onshore facility, or offshore facility from which oil is discharged in violation of the CWA section 311 (b)(3), 33 U.S.C. 1321 (b)(3), or who fails or refuses to comply with any regulations that have been issued under CWA section 311(j), 33 U.S.C. 1321(j), may be assessed an administrative civil penalty of up to \$137,500 by EPA. Class II proceedings under CWA section 311(b)(6) are

conducted in accordance with 40 CFR part 22.

The procedures by which the public may comment on a proposed Class II penalty order, or participate in a Clean Water Act Class II penalty proceeding, are set forth in 40 CFR 22.45. The deadline for submitting public comment on this proposed final order is November 27, 2000. All comments will be transferred to the Environmental Appeals Board ("EAB") of EPA for consideration. The powers and duties of the EAB are outlined in 40 CFR 22.04(a). Pursuant to CWA section 311(b)(6)(C), EPA will not issue an order in this proceeding prior to the close of the public comment period.

**List of Subjects**

Environmental protection.

Dated: October 19, 2000.

**David A. Nielsen,**

*Director, Multimedia Enforcement Division, Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance.*

[FR Doc. 00-27581 Filed 10-25-00; 8:45 am]

**BILLING CODE 6560-50-P**

**FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION**

**[Report No. AUC-00-38-A (Auction No. 38); DA 00-2291]**

**Auction Of Licenses for the 700 MHz Guard Bands Scheduled for February 13, 2001; Comment Sought On Reserve Prices Or Minimum Opening Bids and Other Auction Procedural Issues: Correction**

**AGENCY:** Federal Communications Commission.

**ACTION:** Notice; correction.

**SUMMARY:** The Federal Communications Commission (Commission) published in the **Federal Register** of October 24, 2000, a document announcing the auction of eight Guard Band Manager licenses ("Auction No. 38") in the 700 MHz Guard Bands to commence on February 13, 2001. This auction will include the licenses that remained unsold in Auction No. 33, which closed on September 21, 2000. This document corrects the comment and reply comment dates of the document published on October 24, 2000.

**DATES:** Comments are due on or before October 27, 2000, and reply comments are due on or before November 3, 2000.

**ADDRESSES:** An original and four copies of all pleadings must be filed with the Commission's Secretary, Magalie Roman Salas, Office of the Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, 445

Twelfth Street, SW, TW-A325, Washington, DC 20554.

**FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:**

Auctions and Industry Analysis Division, Wireless Telecommunications Bureau, Howard Davenport, Auctions Attorney, or Craig Bomberger, Auctions Analyst, at (202) 418-0660; or Linda Sanderson, Project Manager, at (717) 338-2888.

**SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:** In the Federal Register of October 24, 2000 (65 FR 63584), the Commission published a summary of its Public Notice regarding Auction No. 38 and sought comment on several issues relating to the auction. The document however, was published with incorrect comment and reply comment dates.

In rule FR Doc. 00-27409 published on October 24, 2000 (65 FR 63584) make the following corrections.

(1) On page 63585 in the **DATES** caption, change the comment date to read "October 27, 2000".

(2) On page 63585 in the **DATES** caption, change the reply comment date to read "November 3, 2000".  
Federal Communications Commission.

**Margaret Wiener,**

*Deputy Chief, Auctions and Industry Analysis Division.*

[FR Doc. 00-27679 Filed 10-25-00; 8:45 am]

**BILLING CODE 6712-01-P**

**FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION****Sunshine Act Notices**

**AGENCY:** Federal Election Commission.

**CANCELLATION OF PREVIOUSLY ANNOUNCED MEETING:** Tuesday, October 17, 2000. Meeting closed to the public.

\* \* \* \* \*

**DATE & TIME:** Tuesday, October 31, 2000 at 10 a.m.

**PLACE:** 999 E Street, NW., Washington, DC.

**STATUS:** This meeting will be closed to the public.

**ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED:**

Compliance matters pursuant to 2 U.S.C. 437g.

Audits conducted pursuant to 2 U.S.C. 437g, 438(b), and Title 26, U.S.C.

Matters concerning participation in civil actions or proceedings or arbitration.

Internal personnel rules and procedures or matters affecting a particular employee.

**DATE & TIME:** Thursday, November 2, 2000 at 10 a.m.

**PLACE:** 999 E Street, NW., Washington, DC (ninth floor).